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The Grace Episcopal Church is a rectangular board and batten structure
with a one story modern addition in the rear. The basic architectural
style is gothic as evidenced principally by the steep gable roof, the
lancet windows and doors and the five double wooden buttresses on each
side of the building. The church is one of two gothic styled frame
Episcopal churches so far identified by the Colorado Inventory of
Historic Sites as existing in Colorado. (The other, St. Georges
Church, is in the Leadville National Register Historic District.)

The exterior is highlighted by a unique treatment. Wooden trim has
been applied over the board and batten siding, resulting in an apparent
simulated half timber construction. It is not known whether this was
the builder's intenticn.

There are three lancet windows with plain glass placed on each side of
the building. Two stained glass lancet windows frame a large stained
glass tracery window with trefoil. Immediately below it, and Jjust
above the front door, is a smaller tracery window with gothic sash.
The main entrance, a projected enclosed portico, features elaborately
decorated doors topped by a small gable roof which reinforces the
angular feeling created by the main roof of the structure. There is

a small cross just above the entrance and another .on.top of a small
square bell tower. '

The building is virtually unchanged except for the addition of Grace
Church Hall at the rear of the main structure irn 1973. This small one
story structure covered by aluminum siding does not detract from the
simple elegance of the main church structure.
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Ohl played a long and important role in the early history of the
Episcopal church in Colorado. When the average length of service for
most priests was one to three years, Reverend Ohl was active for over
thirty. He served churches as far apart as Grand Junction, Glenwood
Springs, Gunnison and Pueblo. A tireless preacher, he established a
chain of preaching stations and was usually rector of more than one
church at the same time. In 1892, Ohl became rector of the Ascension
Church in Salida but continued to serve Buena Vista as well. During
those years, the first buildings at the Colorado Reformatory just out-
side of Buena Vista were built. The rector of the Church also served
as chaplain for the reformatory.

Throughout the early part of the twentieth century, Grace Episcopal
Church remained a center of religious activities for most of the area.
The church at Florence, Colorado, was served from Grace in 1897 as was
that at Granite (1897-1916).

Other churches served from Buena Vista during this period included
Breckinridge (1919-1924), Leadville (1911-1916, 1919-1924), and
Westcliffe (1918-1919).

In 1955, the Bishopric established the "timberline circuit" directed
from Grace Episcopal Church which included seven communities: Buena
Vista, Leadville, Climax, Breckinridge, Frisco, Dillon, and Minturn.
This move marked a revival in the church which is still going on.
The church is now served by a rector in Salida.

Its first century almost complete, the Grace Episcopal Church continues
to play an important role in the life of Buena Vista. An excellent
example of a pioneer mission church, it is still an active force in

the modern life of the town.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The history of the early Episcopal church in Colorado is one of ebb
and flow. A few missionary priests were active along the frontier.
Churches would be started and flourish for a few years until the
original founders moved away or lost their flocks. Throughout it all,
however, the Episcopal church did survive and grow.

On December 31, 1873, the Rt. Reverend John Spa lding was consecrated
Missionary Bishop of Colorado and Wyoming. He took charge of a dis-
trict encompassing over three hundred thousand square miles composed
of two self supporting parishes, three parsonages, about 700 communi-
cants, and ten clergy. With tremendous energy--in the first year
alone he travelled over 7,300 miles, 1,200 of which was by stage and
farm wagon-- he set out to build a bishopric. By 1887, when the bis-
hopric of Colorado was formally created, a cathedral system had been
established, a hospital founded, and the church's schools further
developed. Equally important, the two parishes had grown to seven-
teen which, along with over fifty missions, served more than 2,400
communicants and 13,000 baptized persons. The church had been planted
in twenty-~eight counties and had spread onto the western slope and
into the San Luis Valley as well as down the Arkansas River.

Grace Episcopal Church was organized in 1882 as one of the Arkansas
River missions and for the next two years was visited by Bishop

Spa lding for quarterly services. The first priest the Reverend
Benjamin Hartley was appointed in 1883 and served the church until
1887.

The next year, a contract was let to build the present church structure.
The successful contractors were the Lannan Brothers, a contracting

firm in Buena Vista; the cost was $2,160. Nothing is known about the
architect or the origins of the gothic style. However, the church was
consecrated on September 13, 1889, with the newly appointed Reverend
John W. Ohl conducting the service and delivering the sermon.
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